1 2	IN THE SUPREME COURT O	OF THE STATE OF	NEVADA	
3	RICARDO P. PASCUA,		Electronically Filed	
4	,	Case No.: 71770	Mar 14 2018 10:05 a.m Elizabeth A. Brown	1.
5	Appellant,		Clerk of Supreme Court	t
6	vs.			
7	BAYVIEW LOAN SERVICING,			
8	LLC; SEASIDE TRUSTEE, INC.;			
9	AND BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,			
10				
11	Respondent.			
13	ADDELY ANDS ODENIAL DOTTE			
14	APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF			
15	THERESE M. SHANKS, ESQ. Nevada Bar No. 12890 ROBISON, SHARP, SULLIVAN & BRUST A Professional Corporation 71 Washington Street Reno, Nevada 89503 Telephone: (775) 329-3151			
16).	
17			AN & BRUST	
18	71 Washi Reno, Ne	ington Street evada 89503

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction of this timely appeal pursuant to NRAP
3A(b)(1), because the order entered is a final appealable judgment. The District
Court entered its Order on Petition for Judicial Review on October 24, 2016.
Appellant timely filed his Notice of Appeal on November 15, 2016

vii

3

5 6

7 8

9

1011

12

13 14

15

16

17

18 19

20

21

22

2324

25

26

2728

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Whether the District Court abused its discretion in finding that Pascua did not have authority to participate in a foreclosure mediation when he had been appointed as Special Administrator of the deceased homeowner's estate under NRS 140.040?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal raises from an Order denying a Petition for Judicial Review of a foreclosure mediator's recommendation that a certificate issue to Respondents Bayview Loan Servicing, LLC ("Bayview Loan"), Seaside Trustee, LLC ("Seaside"), and Bank of New York Mellon ("BNYM") (collectively, "Bayview" unless referred to individually) for foreclosure of a home owned by the deceased wife of Appellant Ricardo Pascua ("Pascua"). The foreclosure mediator found that Pascua did not have authority to participate in the foreclosure mediation because the home was still owned by Pascua's deceased wife. Although Pascua had been appointed as the Special Administrator of her estate, the Order did not specifically state that Pascua had authority as Special Administrator to negotiate the mortgage on the home. After the mediator recommended that a certificate issue to Bayview, Pascua filed a Petition for Judicial Review with the District Court. The District Court affirmed the mediator's recommendation. This appeal follows.

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

I. PASCUA LOSES HIS WIFE.

In December 2005, Myrna Pascua ("Myrna") purchased a home in Las Vegas, located at 560 Haunts Walk Avenue (the "Haunts Walk Home"). Record On Appeal ("ROA") 64-67. She executed a Promissory Note in the amount of \$345,500, which was secured by a deed of trust on the home. *Id.* at 38-59. The Deed of Trust was assigned to Bank of New York Mellon. *Id.* at 61. Bayview Loan serviced the loan for Bank of New York Mellon. *Id.* at 29.

Myrna and Pascua have been married since 1994. *Id.* at 8. Myrna passed away in 2010 from breast cancer. *Id.* at 9. She was 55 years old. *Id.* She left behind Pascua and their two children. *Id.* at 79.

II. RICARDO IS APPOINTED SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR.

After Myrna's death, Pascua filed a Petition to be appointed Special Administrator of her estate. *Id.* at 75-76. In the Petition, he specifically noted that he was seeking special administration for "short sale of property located at 560 Haunts Walk Ave." *Id.* at 76. The Petition did not list Myrna's and Pascua's children as heirs. *Id.*

Two days later, Pascua filed an "Amended Petition for Special Letters of Administration," in which he listed the children as heirs. *Id.* at 78-80. He also amended his reason for seeking appointment to "marshal all assets." *Id.* at 79.

Pascua was appointed Special Administrator of Myrna's estate on February 18, 2011. *Id.* at 83-84. The Order specified that he was appointed Special Administrator "for the purpose of administering the estate in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 140.040." *Id.* at 84.

A copy of NRS 140.040 was attached to the Order. *Id.* at 85. Under NRS 140.040, a Special Administrator may "commence, maintain or defend actions or other legal proceedings as a personal representative;" and "[o]btain leave of court to . . . mortgage real property in the same manner as an executor or administrator." NRS 140.040(2)(a), (d).

III. THE FORECLOSURE MEDIATION.

On February 9, 2016, Bayview Loan commenced foreclosure proceedings on the Haunts Walk Home. *Id.* at 30. Seaside was the foreclosure trustee. *Id.* Pascua requested that the parties participate in Nevada's foreclosure mediation program. *Id.*

At the foreclosure mediation, the mediator found that the home was not eligible for the foreclosure mediation program because the Haunts Walk Home was still owned by Myrna, who was not present, and the Order appointing Pascua as Special Administrator of Myrna's estate did not specifically give him authority to participate in the mediation. *Id.* at 101. The mediator recommended that the foreclosure certificate issue to Bayview. *Id.* at 102.

IV. PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW.

Pascua filed a Petition for Judicial Review of the foreclosure mediator's decision. *Id.* at 1-6. He contended that the Order appointing him as Special Administrator did provide him with the authority to participate in the mediation. *Id.* at 4. Specifically, Pascua argued that he had authority to participate in the mediation because "a Special Administrator may: 'For all necessary purposes, commence, maintain or defend actions and other legal proceedings as a personal representative.' (NRS 140.040(2)(a))." *Id.*

The District Court found that Pascua "is not an owner" and "is not entitled to be an owner" of the Haunts Walk Home. *Id.* at 161. It further found that the "Probate Order neither subrogates [Pascua] to the rights of Myrna Pascua under the Note and Trust Deed, nor authorized [Pascua] to modify the Note, nor makes [Pascua] the owner of the Property." *Id.* Accordingly, the District Court ordered that a mediation certificate be issued to Bayview. *Id.* This appeal follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court abused its discretion when it found that Pascua was not a proper party to the foreclosure mediation because he was not appointed Special Administrator of Myrna's estate for that specific purpose. Although Foreclosure Mediation Rule 7(1) ("FMR") is silent as to whether a representative of a homeowner may participate on the homeowner's behalf, NRS 107.086(5) expressly permits a representative to participate in the mediation.

Special administrators are personal representatives of deceased homeowners. NRS 132.265. When a special administrator has been granted powers of general special administration under NRS 140.040, he is not required to obtain a court order specifically authorizing him to participate in a foreclosure mediation because foreclosure mediations are "legal proceedings" which special administrators have authority to commence and/or defend under NRS 140.040(2)(a).

Should this Court disagree, the District Court's Order must still be reversed because Pascua substantially complied with NRS 140.040(2)(c). Pascua's initial petition stated that he sought to be appointed Special Administrator so that he could negotiate a short sale of the Haunts Walk Home, even though he did not obtain a court order specifically granting him that authority. Accordingly, Pascua substantially complied with NRS 140.040(2)(c), and the District Court's Order should be reversed.

ARGUMENT

I. STANDARD OF REVIEW.

This Court reviews a district court's denial of a petition for judicial review of a foreclosure mediation program recommendation for an abuse of discretion.

Pasillas v. HSBC Bank USA, 127 Nev. 462, 468, 255 P.3d 1281, 1286 (2011);

Einhorn v. BAC Home Loans Servicing, LP, 128 Nev. 689, 692, 290 P.3d 249, 251 (2012). However, "[t]he scope and meaning of a statute" and a foreclosure

mediation rule are both questions of law that this Court reviews de novo.

Pasillas, 127 Nev. at 467, 255 P.3d at 1285.

II. THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN FINDING THAT PASCUA, AS SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR, WAS NOT A PROPER PARTY TO THE FORECLOSURE MEDIATION.

The issue in this appeal is whether a special administrator of a deceased homeowner's estate must obtain a specific order under NRS 140.040(2)(c) authorizing his participation in the foreclosure mediation, or whether the general powers granted special administrators under NRS 140.040 are sufficient to vest authority in a special administrator to negotiate a binding agreement at a mediation. The District Court abused its discretion by implicitly holding that a special order is required under NRS 140.040(2)(c), because a special administrator may participate in a foreclosure mediation under NRS 140.040(2)(a).

A. Special Administrators May Participate in Foreclosure Mediations.

Nevada's foreclosure mediation rules do not address who the proper party to a foreclosure mediation is when the homeowner is deceased. Under Nevada's foreclosure mediation rules, "[t]he program applies to any grantor or person (homeowner) who holds the title of record and is the owner-occupant of a residence" FMR 7(1). The rules are otherwise silent regarding deceased homeowners.

FMR 7(1) must be interpreted to include "representatives" of homeowners as proper parties to the mediation. NRS 107.086, the statute which created the foreclosure mediation program, provides that "[t]he grantor or his or her representative, or the person who holds title of record or his or her representative, shall attend the mediation." NRS 107.086(5) (emphasis added).

To construe FMR 7(1) in harmony with NRS 107.086(5), this Court must interpret FMR 7(1) to allow representatives of deceased homeowners to participate in the foreclosure mediation. *See Albios v. Horizon Communities, Inc.*, 122 Nev. 409, 422, 132 P.3d 1022, 1030 (2006) ("Apparent conflicts between a court rule and a statutory provision should be harmonized and both should be given effect if possible." (Internal quotations omitted)). A special administrator is a "personal representative" of a decedent. NRS 132.265.

Accordingly, a special administrator may attend a foreclosure mediation on behalf of a deceased homeowner.

B. Special Administrators May Participate in Foreclosure Mediations Under NRS 140.040(2)(a).

A special administrator does not need to get a specific order under NRS 140.040(2)(c) because a foreclosure mediation is a legal proceeding which special administrators have power to commence or defend under NRS 140.040(2)(a). Special administrators' general powers over an estate are limited. Bodine v. Stinson, 85 Nev. 657, 660, 461 P.2d 868, 871 (1969) (superseded by statute on other grounds). These limited general powers are found in NRS

140.040. However, a special administrator may apply for an order allowing him or her to represent the decedent for a specific purpose not set forth in NRS 140.040. NRS 140.040(2)(c).

Under the general limited authority granted all special administrators, "[a] special administrator may . . . commence, maintain, or defend actions or other legal proceedings as a personal representative." NRS 140.040(2)(a). NRS 140.040 does not define "legal proceeding." "If a statutory phrase is left undefined, this court will construe the phrase according to its plain and ordinary meaning." *In re Resort at Summerlin Litig.*, 122 Nev. 177, 182, 127 P.3d 1076, 1079 (2006). The definition of "legal proceeding" is "[a]ny proceeding authorized by law and instituted in a court or tribunal to acquire a right or to enforce a remedy." *Proceeding*, Black's Law Dictionary (10th ed. 2014).

A foreclosure mediation is a required legal proceeding before a lender may acquire the right to foreclose on a home and enforce its remedy of a trustee's sale. The foreclosure mediation is a proceeding authorized by law. *See* NRS 107.086. A trustee is required to notify homeowners of their right to participate in the foreclosure mediation prior to a trustee's sale of the home. NRS 107.086(2).

A foreclosure mediation is also instituted in a court. If a homeowner decides to participate in the foreclosure mediation, he must file a "petition with the district court to participate in the mediation . . ., and pay the clerk of the court

a fee of \$25" plus the petitioner's portion of mediation fees imposed under the FMR. NRS 107.086(3). The mediator is required to notify the district court of the outcome of the mediation. NRS 107.086(8)-(9).

Finally, the foreclosure mediation program is a necessary requirement for a trustee who hopes to acquire the right to foreclose on owner-occupied housing and/or enforce their remedy of a nonjudicial foreclosure pursuant to a power of sale. If the homeowner properly elects to participate in the foreclosure mediation program, "no further action may be taken to exercise the power of sale until the completion of the mediation." NRS 107.086(3). Accordingly, the foreclosure mediation program is a "legal proceeding" within the plain meaning of that term.

Because the foreclosure mediation program is a "legal proceeding," a special administrator has the general power to initiate, defend *and participate* in a foreclosure mediation under NRS 140.040(2)(a). Pascua was granted this general power in his Order appointing him Special Administrator. *See* ROA 84. Therefore, the District Court abused its discretion in finding that Pascua was not a proper party to negotiate the terms of the mortgage in the foreclosure mediation. The District Court's Order must be reversed.

C. Regardless, Pascua Substantially Complied with NRS 140.040(2)(c).

Should this Court disagree, the District Court's Order must still be reversed because Pascua substantially complied with NRS 140.040(2)(c). To determine whether strict or substantial compliance with a statute is required, this

Court "examine[s] the statute's provisions, as well as policy and equity considerations." *O.P.H. of Las Vegas, Inc. v. Oregon Mut. Ins. Co.*, 133 Nev., Adv. Op. 60, 401 P.3d 218, 221 (Nev. 2017). Substantial compliance is used "to avoid harsh, unfair or absurd consequences." *Id.* at 222 (internal quotations omitted). It is appropriate if the purpose of the statute "can be adequately served in a manner other than by technical compliance with the statutory language." *Id.* (Internal quotations and alterations omitted).

Although special administrators have limited authority, the Legislature clearly intended special administrators to be able to negotiate mortgages on property. Under NRS 140.050(1), a special administrator may ask the court for leave to pay a mortgage. Under NRS 140.040(2)(d), a special administrator may ask the court for permission to place a mortgage on real property of the estate. Thus, the Legislature clearly contemplated that special administrators would be required to negotiate mortgages on decedent's real property.

Here, Pascua's Order of appointment did not specifically vest him with that authority. Regardless, Pascua obviously sought to become Special Administrator for the sole purpose of negotiating the mortgage on the Haunts Walk Home. In his first Petition, he specifically noted that he was seeking special administration for "short sale of property located at 560 Haunts Walk Ave." ROA 76. When he amended the Petition to include the heirs, he omitted this language. *Id.* at 79.

Bayview and the District Court were both aware that Pascua sought to become Special Administrator to short sell the Haunts Walk Home because Bayview specifically informed the District Court of this fact and provided the District Court with Pascua's original and amended Petitions. *Id.* at 29, 75-80. Pascua substantially complied with NRS 140.040(2)(c). The District Court's decision must be reversed.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Pascua respectfully requests that this Court reverse the District Court's Order and remand this matter for further proceedings.