1	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA	
2	RICHARD PASCUA, an individual,)	
3	Appellant,) Supreme Court Case May 94-72018 12:22 Elizabeth A. Brown	p.m.
5	Clerk of Supreme Cl	
6	vs.	
7	BAYVIEW LOAN SERVICING, LLC;) SEASIDE TRUSTEE, INC.; BANK OF)	
8	NEW YORK MELLON; MEDIATION) ADMINISTRATOR.	
9)	
10	Respondents.	
11	<u>APPEAL</u>	
12	From the Eighth Judicial District Court	
13	The Honorable Kathleen E. Delaney, District Court Judge	
14 15	District Court Case No. A-16-741223-J	
16		
17	RESPONDENTS' ANSWERING BRIEF	
18		
19		
20	Aaron Waite, Esq. Nevada Bar No. 007947	
21	WEINSTEIN & RILEY, P.S.	
22	6785 South Eastern Avenue, Suite 4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89119	
23	Telephone: 844-640-5411

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Whether Appellant has standing to participate in foreclosure mediation regarding the real property located at 560 Haunts Walk Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada 89178 ("Property").

STATEMENT OF CASE

Myrna Pascua obtained a \$345,500.00 loan for the purchase of the Property and executed an Interest Only Fixed Rate Note ("Note") for the loan. Myrna Pascua also executed a deed of trust ("Trust Deed") to secure the Note. The Trust Deed was recorded against the Property on or about January 6, 2006. The Trust Deed was assigned to The Bank of New York Mellon FKA The Bank of New York, as Trustee for the Certificateholders CWALT, Inc., Alternative Loan Trust 2006-7CB, Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-7CB ("Beneficiary"). Beneficiary also holds the original Note, through its custodian of records.

Myrna Pascua passed away. Appellant filed a Petition for Special Letters of Administration in February 2011 and filed an Amended Petition a few days later. The probate court entered the Order Appointing Special Administrator, appointing Appellant to be a special administrator of Myrna Pascua's estate. Appellant did nothing after the appointment with regards to Myrna Pascua's estate. Appellant is not the trustor or title owner to the Property.

Respondents commenced a foreclosure of the Property. Appellant requested foreclosure mediation. The parties participated in foreclosure mediation, and the mediator recommended that the Foreclosure Mediation Program issue a certificate to Respondents. Appellant filed a petition for judicial review. The District Court also found for Appellants and ordered that the Foreclosure Mediation Program issue a certificate to Respondents.

STATEMENT OF FACT

The Loan

On or about December 29, 2005, Myrna Pascua obtained a \$345,500.00 loan for the purchase of the Property and executed an Interest Only Fixed Rate Note ("Note") for the loan. *See* Record on Appeal ("ROA") at 40-43. On or about December 29, 2005, Myrna Pascua executed a deed of trust ("Trust Deed") to secure the Note. *See* ROA at 45-61. The Trust Deed was recorded against the Property on or about January 6, 2006. See id.

The Note is endorsed in blank. *See* ROA at 40-43. The Trust Deed was assigned to The Bank of New York Mellon FKA The Bank of New York, as Trustee for the Certificateholders CWALT, Inc., Alternative Loan Trust 2006-7CB, Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-7CB ("Beneficiary"). *See* ROA at 63-64. Beneficiary holds the Note. *See* ROA at 158. Respondent Bayview services the loan for the Beneficiary. *See id*.

Appellant is not a title owner of the Property. *See* ROA at 66-72. Appellant is not the trustor on the Trust Deed. *See* ROA at 45-61.

The Probate

On or about February 16, 2011, Appellant filed a Petition for Special Letters of Administration was filed in the Eight District Court, Clark County, Nevada, Case P-11-070593 ("Probate"), regarding the estate of Myrna Pascua. See ROA at 76-78. On or about February 18, 2011, Appellant filed an Amended Petition for Special Letters of Administration in the Probate. See ROA at 80-83. On or about February 18, 2011, the court in the Probate entered the Order Appointing Special Administrator ("Probate Order"). See ROA at 85-88. The Probate Order appointed Appellant to be a special administrator of Myrna Pascua's estate. See id. The Probate Order states that Appellant must "administer the estate in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 104.040." See id. A copy of NRS 104.040 was attached to the Probate Order. See id. The Probate Order also states that "proof of the blocked account shall be filed with the court within thirty (30) days from the date of entry of this court order. See id.

After the Probate Order was entered in the Probate, five creditor's claims were filed in the Probate. *See* ROA at 90-98.

Plaintiff also filed a notice of lis pendens regarding the Property in the Probate. *See* ROA at 100.

Appellant did not file proof of a blocked account or anything else in the Probate Case. *See* ROA at 72.

The Property was not distributed or otherwise conveyed to Appellant by Myrna Pascua or as part of the Probate. *See id*.

The Foreclosure Mediation

On or about February 9, 2016, Beneficiary commenced a foreclosure of the Property, with Seaside as foreclosure trustee. *See* ROA at 159. Appellant requested foreclosure mediation. *See id.* John Boyer was appointed the mediator. See id. The Mediator issued the Notice to Appear on April 26, 2016, which scheduled the mediation for June 22, 2016. *See id.*

On May 3, 2016, counsel for Bayview sent Bayview's initial document requests to Appellant via email. *See id*. When the email to Appellant was returned undelivered, counsel for Bayview mailed the initial document requests to Appellant on May 10, 2016. *See* ROA at 160.

On June 10, 2016, Bayview sent its disclosure of documents to the Appellant and mediator. *See id.* Bayview's disclosure included the Note, all three endorsements to the Note, the Trust Deed, the Assignment, an appraisal dated May 23, 2016, a power of attorney from BNYM to Bayview, and an authorization from Bayview to its counsel. *See id.*

On June 22, 2016, Bayview and its counsel participated in the foreclosure

mediation, and brought to the mediation certified copies of the Note, all three endorsements to the Note, the Trust Deed, and the Assignment, together with copies of the May 23, 2016, appraisal, power of attorney from BNYM to Bayview, and authorization from Bayview to its counsel. *See id*.

Appellant appeared at the mediation with a realtor. Appellant presented the Probate Order to the mediator. *See id*.

The mediator found that Appellant was not eligible for foreclosure mediation regarding the Property because the borrower is deceased, that the Probate Order did not appoint Appellant as special administrator for the mediation (among other things), and recommended that a certificate issue to Bayview. *See* ROA at 102-114.

On July 7, 2016, the Foreclosure Mediation Program issued a notice that a certificate would issue to Bayview. *See* ROA at 116-140.

Petition for Judicial Review

On August 5, 2016, Appellant filed his Petition for Judicial Review. *See* ROA at 3-24. Appellant's Petition for Judicial Review alleges that Appellant is a "co-owner and/or successor-in-interest of the subject owner-occupied residential property," and the "Special Administrator of the estate of his deceased spouse." See id. On August 31, 2016, Respondents filed a Response to Order to Show Cause and to the Petition for Judicial Review. *See* ROA at 29-140.

On September 22, 2016, the District Court held a hearing on Appellant's Petition. *See* ROA at 151-155. Appellant did not appear at the hearing. See id. The District Court denied the Petition. *See id*. On October 24, 2016, the District Court entered the Order on Petition for Judicial Review, denying Appellant's Petition and concluding that Appellant is not the owner of the Property. *See id*.

Appeal

On November 15, 2016, Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal.

ARGUMENT SUMMMARY

Appellant does not have standing to participate in foreclosure mediation regarding the Property because he is not the grantor or on title to the Property.

The Probate Order does not authorize Appellant to request or participate in foreclosure mediation.

ARGUMENT

The Court should affirm the District Court's decision. The District Court did not abuse its discretion in denying Appellant's Petition for Judicial Review.

Appellant lacks standing to appeal because Appellant is not an aggrieved party as required by NRAP 3A. Appellant has no claim or right in or to the Property. "A party is aggrieved within the meaning of NRAP 3A(a) when either a personal right or right of property is adversely and substantially affected by a district court's ruling." *Valley Bank v. Ginsburg*, 110 Nev. 440, 446, 874 P.2d

729, 734 (Nev. 1994) (quoting *Estate of Hughes v. First Nat'l Bank*, 96 Nev. 178, 180, 605 P.2d 1149, 1150 (1980) (quotations omitted)). Despite Appellant's claim in his Petition for Judicial Review that he is a co-owner and successor in interest regarding the Property, Appellant has no ownership interest in the Property.

Appellant is not entitled to request or participate in foreclosure mediation regarding the Property. Foreclosure mediation is available to the "grantor or the person who holds the title of record." *See* NRS 107.086(2), and Rule 7 of the Foreclosure Mediation Rules. Appellant is not the grantor. Myrna Pascua executed the Note and Trust Deed, not Appellant. Appellant does not own the Property. Myrna Pascua never conveyed the Property to Appellant. The Property was never conveyed to Appellant through a probate or other court order. Appellant does not have standing to request foreclosure mediation, to pursue the Petition for Judicial Review, or to appeal, because he is not on title to the Property, and he is not the trustor. The Property is not owner-occupied housing for which foreclosure mediation is available.

The Probate Order does not give Appellant standing to participate in foreclosure mediation, does not make the Property eligible for foreclosure mediation, and does not give Appellant a real property interest in the Property.

NRS Chapter 140 regards special administrators in probate actions. "A special

administrator is not a general representative of the estate. He is an emergency officer with limited authority to care for and preserve the estate until an executor or general administrator is ascertained or appointed as its proper legal representative." *Bodine v Stinson*, 85 Nev. 657, 660, 461 P.2d 868, 871 (1969) (citing *Rich v. Dixon*, 153 Conn. 52, 212 A.2d 421 (1965), and NRS 140.070) (superseded in part by statute, see *Jacobson v. Estate of Clayton*, 121 Nev. 518, 119 P.3d 132 (2005)). "[A special administrator] is not to conduct the administration of the estate." *Bodine v Stinson*, 85 Nev. 657, 660, 461 P.2d 868, 871 (1969).

NRS 140.010 et seq., contains provisions that may be relevant to a foreclosure or foreclosure mediation, but that does not mean that Appellant or the Property are eligible for foreclosure mediation. NRS 140.010 states a special administrator can be appointed "to collect and take charge of the estate of the decedent, in whatever county or counties the estate may be found, and to exercise such other powers as may be necessary to preserve the estate." NRS 104.040 details the powers of a special administrator, which include "tak[ing] charge and management of real property" NRS 104.050 also authorizes a special administrator to make mortgage payments with court authorization.

Here, however, nothing in the Probate Order gave Appellant authority authorized or required Appellant take any action regarding the Note or Trust

Deed. Despite a reference to a short sale in the original probate petition, nothing in the amended probate petition or order refer to the Note or Trust Deed. The amended probate petition only asks that Appellant be allowed to marshal assets. The Probate Order charges the Appellant to specially administer the Myrna Pascua estate "in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 104.040." Moreover, Appellant did nothing after obtaining the order. Appellant did not file proof of a blocked account or file anything else. There is no evidence that Appellant even attempted to short sell the Property. Instead, Appellant has occupied the Property and not paid the mortgage payments.

The Probate Order does not authorize Appellant to negotiate a loan modification for the estate of Myrna Pascua. In fact, the Probate Order is silent regarding the Note and Trust Deed. Appellant would have been required to file a separate motion and seek specific permission in this regard. NRS 140.050. The Probate Order, together with the version of NRS 140.040 that is attached to the Probate Order, clearly states that Appellant could "collect and preserve" the assets of Myrna Pascua's estate. The Probate Order charges Appellant with collecting, taking charge of, and protecting the assets of Myrna Pascua's estate. There is no indication that he has done so. The documents filed in the Probate indicate that Appellant only filed a lis pendens in the Probate after the Probate Order was entered. Appellant did not file proof of a blocked account, information

regarding the litigation referenced in the Probate Order, or anything else. No general administration was opened, and no letters testamentary were issued. The Probate Order does not apply or bind the Court or the mediator here. The Court should not construe the Probate Order or the Amended Probate Petition to make Appellant eligible for foreclosure mediation regarding the Property. The specifics of the Probate Order should govern the authority of Appellant as the special administrator.

The Probate Order neither subrogated Appellant to the rights of Myrna Pascua under the Note and Trust Deed, nor authorized Appellant to modify the loan, nor otherwise made Appellant the owner of the Property. The Probate Order did not authorize Appellant to assume ownership of the Property. Appellant is not and never was on title to the Property. Appellant does not "automatically become[] the owner or co-owner of the subject property upon the death of her spouse." *See* ROA at 3-24, Petition at p. 4, ¶ 20. The Probate Order does not substitute Appellant in as the borrower, subrogate Appellant to Myrna Pascua's position, or result in Appellant assuming the loan. There is nothing in Chapter 140, or the Probate Order, that would require or result in Appellant being deemed a grantor, borrower, trustor, or title owner.

CONCLUSION

The Court should affirm the District Court and hold that Appellant is not entitled to foreclosure mediation regarding the Property.

ATTORNEY CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this brief complies with the formatting requirements of NRAP 32(a)(4), the typeface requirements of NRAP 32(a)(5) and the type style requirements of NRAP 32(a)(6) because this brief has been prepared in a proportionally spaced typeface using Times New Roman in 14-point font.

I further certify that this brief complies with the type-volume limitations of NRAP 32(a)(7) because, excluding the parts of the brief exempted by NRAP 32(a)(7)(C), it is proportionately spaced, has a typeface of 14 points or more and contains 2,892 words.

Finally, I hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief, and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, it is not frivolous or interposed for any improper purpose. I further certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in particular NRAP 28(e)(1), which requires every assertion in the brief regarding matters in the record to be supported by a reference to the page and volume number, if any, of the transcript or appendix where the matter relied on is to be found. I understand that I may be subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying brief is not in conformity

1	with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.
2	DATED this 4th day of May 2018.
3	WEINSTEIN & RILEY, P.S.
4	<u>/s/ Aaron Waite, Esq.</u>
5	Aaron Waite, Esq. (7947) 6785 South Eastern Avenue, Suite 4
6	Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
7	Telephone: (702) 507-6403
8	E-Mail: aaronw@w-legal.com Attorneys for Respondents
9	Attorneys for respondents
10	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
11	
12	I hereby certify that on the 4th day of May 2018, I served a true and correct
13	copy of the foregoing RESPONDENTS' ANSWERING BRIEF via the electronic
14	filing system and First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the following party:
15	Therese M. Shanks, Esq.
16	Robison, Simons, Sharp & Brust
17	71 Washington Street Reno, Nevada 89503
18	Attorneys for Appellant
19	/s/ Aaron Waite, Esq.
20	An Employee of WEINSTEIN & RILEY, P.S.
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26